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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 3
[ OFF M C]
[ gavel ]

CHAI RPERSON DI CKENS: Good afternoon.

am council| nmenber Inez E. Dickens. As the chair of
t he Subconm ttee on Pl anning, D spositions and
Concession, | would like to wel cone everyone to
today’'s hearing. | want to thank and acknow edge ny
Sergeant at Arns Yvette Mlina and ny Land Use Staff
Any Levitan, Any MCorhy, Gail Benjamin. | also want
to extend a warm wel cone to our new Land Use Director
Raoul [ Sp?] Mann and Proj ect Manager Brian Paul. Um
we have nunerous itens on our cal endar today. Some
we will be hearing and voting on and others are being
| aid over to our future neeting of the sub-conmttee.
To start we are laying over the following itens, Land
Use Item 70 — The Dean Atlantic Project for Section
577 Tax Exenption for Properties and Council Menbers
Espinal and Darlene Mealy's District and Land Use
Item 89 — Melrose Conmon Site CG-1 for Section 696 Tax
Exenption for Properties and Council Menber Arroyo’s
District. Uh, | want to acknow edge that the
comm ttee menbers, Council Menber Mealy is here and
Counci | Menber Andy Cohen has joined us. Thank you.

Again, these itens are being laid over to our next
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 4
meeting on July 21%' as the nenbers gather the
necessary information for these devel opnents. |
woul d i ke to know for the record that Land Use 72, a
UDAP, concerning properties located in Council Menber
Treyger’s district is being withdrawn by HPD. W
will vote on a notion to file that itemat the end of
the hearing. We will now proceed to the itens we are
hol di ng public hearings for today. First, we wll
open the public hearing for Land Use Item 71, the
Mapl e Court Project subnmitted by HPD for Section 577
Tax Exenption for a property that is |ocated in ny
district. Wuld you please identify yourself, uh
Artie, from HPD and we’ ve now been joi ned by Counci
Menber Rodriguez. Thank you. You didn’t get the
gold star. Wuld you identify yourself?

ARTlI E PEARSON: (Okay, good afternoon
Chair Dickens, nenbers of the commttee, I'mArtie
Pearson of HPD's O fice of Policy and External
Affairs and 1’mjoined by Ariel Lipper, fromthe
O fice of Housing Supervision. Land Use 71 consists
of the proposed exenption area for Block 1748, Lot 1,
al so known as Maple Court HDFC, a 135-unit co-
operative for lowincone famlies. The exenption

area currently receives a partial 421-A tax exenption
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 5
that will expire on June 30, 2021 that was obtai ned
subsequent to the council approval of the origina
project in 1994 known as North General Limted Equity
Cooperative that is part of the M| bank-Fraw ey urban
renewal area 531. The exenption area is experiencing
financial difficulties and intends to refinance their
nort gage, however, conpleted and substantially
occupi ed buil di ngs cannot voluntarily w thdraw from
the 421-A Program The Regul atory Agreenent in place
now wi I I expire 2019, at which point the HDFC wi ||
enter into a new agreenent with HPD. Therefore, HPD
is before the council seeking approval of an Article
11 Tax Exenption that will becone effective once the
421- A exenption expires in order to maintain the
affordability of these home ownership units. Counci
Menber Di ckens has been briefed and supports this
proj ect and coul d answer any questions you have.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thank you so
much Ms. Pearson. | do support this project that I
want to note for the record that the Maple Courts
Shar ehol ders of the HDFC has submitted witten
testinmony in support of HPD s application and | am
accepting that testinony. Uh, | have no questions as

| have net with the residents, uh, they are in need
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 6
of this, uh, tax exenption in order to keep first,
the units to be affordable and second, in order to
make the necessary repairs to continue to make this a
vi abl e devel opnment in nmy district. Do any of the
comm ttee menbers have any questions? Council Menber
Meal y?

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: | just wanted to
get clarity. You said that they are trying to, they
are opting out of a progranf

ARTI E PEARSON: No, they cannot
voluntarily opt out of the 421-A Program and they
have to remain in it till it expires and then the tax
exenmption wll kick in.

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: Oh the tax exenpt
will kick in then? Ok then, thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Are there any
ot her menbers of the public that wish to testify?
Seeing none |I'’mgoing to close the public hearing on
this item and open the public hearing on Land Use
I[tem 75. The 492 St. N cholas Project, whichis a
ULERP application that is also in ny district.

Artie, is that you again?

ARTI E PEARSON: Yes it is.
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 7

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Al right, Thehbia
Walters, Grace, Charles Powell. Wuld you pl ease
first identify yourselves beginning with you Artie
and then continue with your testinony.

ARTI E PEARSON:  Afternoon Chair Dickens,
again, I'mArtie Pearson fromHPD s Ofice of Policy
and External Affairs and |I’mjoined by Thehbia
Walters, HPD s Director of Manhattan Pl anning. Land
Use Nunber 75 and related Item 76 consists of the
proposed ULERP Actions for the disposition of the
ur ban devel opnent action area of designation of an
underutilized vacant | ot |ocated at Bl ock 1959, Lot
54 al so known as 492 St. N chol as Avenue. The
di sposition area is a privately owed | ot that HPD
previously sold in 1994 to the Geater Harlem
Whi t ehal | Housi ng Devel opnent, it’'s part of a
rehabilitation project known as Striver’s Plaza 2-A
and was nai ntai ned as open space. The ULERP action
will allow HPD to reacquire the disposition area in
order to renove the restricted use as open space and
to facilitate the new construction of a 10-story
m xed use buil ding containing up to 14 honeownership
units and 2,400 square feet of conmercial space.

Additionally, the ULERP action is required because
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 8
t he proposed new construction project will result in
nore than four units making it ineligible for
accel erated UDAP, that’s per State’s statutes.
Agai n, Council Menber Dickens has been briefed on
this on this project and has indicated her support.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: We' ve been

j oi ned by Council Menber Treyger, nenber of this
committee, thank you for comng. You too, did not
get the gold star today. Um1l want to thank you so
much for your testinmony. Um | do have a statenent
that | want to nmake on behalf of this particular
devel opnent. HPD has provided a letter to the Sub-
comrittee of Planning, Disposition and Concessions
and the Commttee on Land Use regarding the 492 St.
Ni chol as Avenue Project. The Uniform Land Use Revi ew
Procedure of this application is being noved to all ow
the Greater Harl em Housi ng Devel opnent Corp. to sel
t he vacant |land | ocated at 492 St. Nichol as Avenue.
This transaction will provide the organization with
capital that would allow GHHDC to continue to provide
117 affordable residential units at Striver’s Pl aza.
First, HPD has agreed to work with GHHDC to begin
renovation work on the Striver’'s Plaza’s Units to the

Article 8-A Loan Program The G eater Harl em Housing
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 9
Devel opnment Corp. has also secured a $2.5 million in
Reso- A nonies that will be used towards renovati ons.
This includes the replacenent of boilers, insulation
of new wi ndows, roofs, entry doors, intercons and
security caneras. GGHHDC has taken fisca
responsibility for Striver’s Plaza and has hired ELH
Managenent as the Property Manager in 2013 to further
address and to stabilize the financial physical
condition of the properties. GHHDC has al so entered
into a voluntary repair agreenent to correct and
renove any and all violation on the properties.
Lastly, HPD will assist the Greater Harl em Housi ng
Devel opment Corp. with the sale of the vacant lot to
F- Lot Devel opment LLC, the purchase of $1.205
t housand dollars. The noney fromthis sale, the
proceeds will be used to pay past due Con Edi son
bills, water, sewer paynents and any other debts that
have becone associated with Striver’s Pl aza.
appl aud HPD and the Greater Harl em Housi ng
Devel opnment Corp.’s efforts to continue to preserve
af fordabl e housing in ny comunity and at Striver’s
Plaza. Do any of the, ny colleagues on the conmttee
have any questions? Alright, seeing none, are there

any ot her menbers of the public that wish to testify?




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 10
Seeing none, I'mgoing to close the public hearing on
this itemand |I’mgoing to open the public hearing on
Land Use Item 80 — the 127'" Street O uster Project
for Section 577 Tax Exenption for properties also in
ny district. GCee, I"'ma win-win today. Artie, is
that you again? Identify yourself for the record.

ARTI E PEARSON: [ LAUGHI NG Good...

afternoon Chair Dickens, I’'mArtie Pearson of HPD s
Ofice of Policy and External Affairs and |’ mj oi ned
by Ki nmberly Darga, Assistant Conmm ssioner of
Preservation Finance. Land Use 80 consists of a
proposed anmendnent to the previously approved
resolution for an urban devel opnent actionary project
| ocated at Bl ock 1749, Lots 160 and 66, Bl ocks 1750,
Lots 65 and 104, Block 1751, Lots 1457, 63 and 156,
Bl ocks 1752, Lots 10 and 70, Block 1755, Lot 22, and
Bl ock 1756, Lot 8, also known as 127'" Street C uster
— Finite Hones HDSC. The cluster was originally
rehabilitated through the Nei ghborhood Entrepreneurs
Programin 1997. On Decenber 19, 2013, the Counci
approved Article 11, tax exenption in order to extend
the existing affordability restrictions as part of
the year 15 programrepositioning. The project

consists of 12 nmultiple dwellings with a total of 132
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 11
residential units. Today HPD is for the counci
seeking to anend the resolution in order to
accurately define the location of one of the tax lots
as Lot 160, and to anend the defined term of
“Regul atory Agreenent”, of Section 1-J.

Additionally, sonme of the buildings have Certificates
of QOccupanci es and others have “i Cards”. Because a
previously approved resol ution contains |anguage
[imting the exenption to buildings with Certificates
of QGccupancy, therefore necessary to anend the
resolution in order to allow the exenption to be
applied to all the buildings. Council Menber D ckens
has been briefed on this project and has indicated
her support.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thank you so
much Artie again. And this is in ny council district
and | do support this. This will allow for the
conti nuation of affordable housing. Are there any
ot her questions fromny Council Menber Mealy?

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: | would just like
to know if they don’t have the Certificate of
Cccupancy, um what is, what are you doing with it?

ARTI E PEARSON: O der buil di ngs have

“iCards” so sone properties do not have Certificates
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 12
of QGccupancy they have “iCards” instead. So these
properties either have an “iCard” or a CofO. |I'm
sorry.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS:  Woul d you
explain this is what will correct that because nmaybe
she, the council nenber.ldentify yourself please.

KIM DARGA: M nane is Kim Dargan, the
Assi stant Conm ssioner for Preservation Finance of
HPD. Um and the rehab, there is going to be sone
nodest rehab, um done to the properties here. Um
but you don’t need to get a CofOif you have an
“iICard”. The “iCard” itself docunments the |egal use
of the Property.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: kay, thank you.
Any ot her questions fromny coll eagues? You have any
further questions?

[OFf M c]

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Are there any
guestions, are there anyone wishing to testify from
the public? Seeing none, | amgoing to close the
public hearing on this itemand |'’mgoing to open it
on Land Use Item 83 which is not in ny district. The

2015 Monterrey Avenue for Section 577 Tax Exenption
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 13
for Properties in Council Menber’s Torres and
Arroyo’s district. |Is that you again Artie?

ARTI E PEARSON: Yes it is.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Just stay there,
don’t get up.

ARTI E PEARSON: [l aughter] Artie
Pearson, fromHPD s Ofice of Policy and External
Affairs and again |I'mjoined by Kinberly Darga,
Assi stant Conmi ssioner for Preservation Finance.
Land Use Number 83 consists of an exenption area
| ocated at Bl ock 2090, Lots 27, 34, 37, 40, 43, 50
and Bl ock 3061, Lots 22, 26, 32, 34 and 36, also
known as 2015 Monterrey Avenue. Under the proposed
project the sponsor will undertake the acquisition
consol idation and rehabilitation of two HUD i nsured
devel opnents known as Monterrey Gardens and MBD- 2.
The project consists of ten nmultiple dwellings the
conbi ned nunber of 330 residential units including
two superintendent units. Additionally there are two
conmercial units. Once, uh, one of which is
currently vacant while the other is occupied by a
grocer. Both projects are project-based devel opnents
and are currently receiving Article 5 Exenpti ons.

Today HPD is before the council seeking approval to
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PLANNI NG, DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 14

terminate the current Article 5 partial exenption,
t he voluntary dissolution of the current owner and
approval for a new article M Tax Exenption for a
period of 30 days in order to facilitate the |ong
termcredibility of the project. Both counci
menbers Arroyo and Torres have indicated their
support .

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Do any of ny
col | eagues have any questions? Seeing none, are
there any nmenbers of the public here that wish to
testify? Seeing none, | amclosing the public
hearing on this itemand we will now open the public
hearing on Land Use Itens 90, 91, and 92, which are
all related and Artie is that you? GCkay. Land Use
and it is in nmy district, uh, Land Use Item 90, |I'm
trying to get it all through before the sumer, is M
Houses — Term nation of an Existing Real Property Tax
Exenption, pursuant to Section 125 and Land Use Item
Nunber 91 and 92 are for Section 577 Tax Exenption
for these properties. |Identify yourself please.

ARTI E PEARSON: Artie Pearson, fromHPD s
Ofice of Policy and External Affairs and again |I’'m
joined by Kinberly Darga, Assistant Comm ssioner for

Preservation Finance. Land Use nunbers 90, 91 and 92
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 15
consi st of the proposed exenption area containing
three buildings |ocated at Block 1778, Lots 6, five
vacant lots |ocated at Block 1754, Lots 42, 43, 141
and 142 and Bl ock 1777, Lots 69, also known as M
Houses. Under the HUD Multi-fam |y Loan Program
sponsor proposes to refinance the project and
undertake the rehabilitation at three multiple
dwel i ngs containing 131 Section-8 Project Base
Units. The repositioning of this project involves
three actions. The first is Land Use Nunber 90,
whi ch seeks the authorization to legally separate the
exenption area into two ownershi ps structures, one
for the buildings and the other for the vacant |ots.
The second is Land Use Number 91, which seeks a 35-
year tax exenption for the existing buildings, which
wll be co-termnus with the new Regul atory
Agreenent. The third is Land Use 92, which seeks a
five year tax exenption for the vacant |ots provided
t he sponsor inplenents construction of a devel opnent
project within five years of approval of a tax
exenption. HPD is before the council seeking the
vol untary dissolution of the current owner, M
Housi ng Associ ates, the redevel opnent conpany

organi zed under Article 5 and approval of an Article
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 16

11 tax exenption and Council Menber Dickens has been
briefed and indi cates her support for this project.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Yes | do. |
fully support this, uh, with the tax exenption wl|
allowthis to remain affordable. Are there any
questions fromthe, ny nenbers of this committee?
Seei ng none, are there any nenbers of the public here
that wish to testify? Seeing none, I’'mgoing to
close the public hearing on this itemand lastly, in
sonebody el se’s district, enough of ny colleague’s
district, we will hear Land Use Item Nunber 93 and
94, which are related a UDAP application concerni ng
the Henry Apartnents in Council Menber Mealy’s
district. Um we have Artie here, uh, Pearson, a
record of Land Use. Uh, is Jack here?

[ OFF M C]

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Jack, hello
Jack. [laughter] Have the director of the Brooklyn
Pl anni ng and Ray Hodges? What’'s your title Ray? You
didn't give yourself a title here.

[ OFF M C]

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: All these

directors, welcone. [laughter] Council Menber Mealy
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 17
woul d you like to give a statenment before the
testinony or after?

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: Now, | just want
to take the opportunity to say, um this is an area
where nostly conmercial and the | ast adm nistration
just wanted comrercial and | kind of felt that we
have to utilize as nmuch of housing that we can so |
asked themto stop one project and put housing in the
project now sonme mi xed use and then, um the support
of housing, | think this will be about the |ast
support of housing on, in that strip so |I’'m | ooking
forward to this one and furthernore, to have, um
what is good about this project, they do have now,
um it will be onsite security and um nedical, on,
on the site just as well, so I'’mlooking forward to
this property where normally was no housing at all,
really. They just wanted commercial so I'’mglad to
open up this process to housing and support its
housi ng, not too nmuch but | approve of this project.
Thank you

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thanks. Thank
you council nenber. Wuld you proceed with your

testi nony?
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 18
ARTI E PEARSON: Artie Pearson, HPD s

Ofice of Policy and External Affairs and |’ m joi ned
by Jack Hammer, HPD s Director of Brooklyn Planning
and Ray Hodges, Director of Special Needs Housi ng.
Land Use Nunmber 93 consists of the proposed ULERP and
related action to approve the U ban Devel opnent and
Action Area Designation project approval and
di sposition of seven vacant City-owned | ots | ocated
768 to 770 Decatur Street and 1696 to 1712 Broadway,
al so known as Henry Apartnents. Under the support of
Housi ng Loan Program the ULERP Actions wl |
facilitate the devel opnent of 79 units of affordable
and supportive housing. This project is the subject
of a previous action by the Gty Planning Com ssion
whi ch approved designation as an urban devel opnent
action of the project and disposition of the project
to facilitate a retail devel opnent that’'s part of
HP’ s..program However, the previously selected project’s
sponsor was unable to bring the project to fruition. The
current sponsors proposes to construct a six-story m xed
use building with 79 units of affordable, uh, affordable
to househol ds earning in | ess than 60% AM. 8,013 square
feet of commrercial space, 71,527 square feet of comunity

facility space and 30.., and 3,810 square feet of outdoor

recreational space and as Council Menber Mealy has
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSIONS 19
i ndi cated she has indicated support of this project and
we are available to answer any questions.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS:  Um now, |, |
understand from Council Menber Mealy that this is the
housing that will be created as supportive housing?
I's that correct?

JACK HAMMER:  Yes, that is correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Woul d you pl ease
explain for the record?

JACK HAMMER: There is total of 79
dwel ling units, um and the breakdown is uh, 60% of
the units woul d be designated for chronically, uh,
chronically honel ess individuals with severe physi cal
and nental illness, 40%of the units will be, uh,
housi ng affordable to fam lies, individuals and
fam lies earning | ess than 60% of AM.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Now, in addition
to the nedical assistance that | understand will be
housed on site, is that correct?

JACK HAMMER:  Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: W/ I, will that
include a nental health facility as well? O
assi stance?

RAY HODGES: It will be served..There'll

be counseling and nental health counseling, job
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 20
training, a range of different services provided by
the non-profit, long-termowner of the property.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thank you. Are
t here any questions fromny coll eagues?

RAY HODGES: Sure, |I'’m Ray Hodges, the
director of Devel opnent from Speci al Needs Housi ng at
HPD.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thank you sir.
Are there any questions fromny coll eagues? Counci
Menber Mealy you have any ot her statenents you want
to add?

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: Um just that it
wll be two buildings, right? And it will be split
and would majority of the Special Needs would be in a
studi o apartnent?

RAY HODGES: That's correct, ya, the
ULERP action is for this site, and the sponsor is
al so devel oping a privately-owned site across the
street.

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: O their own
property?

RAY HODGES: Correct.
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 21

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: (kay, break, give
me the breakdown again. |Is 25 of supportive housing
in studio apartments and then 20 in the other sites?

RAY HODGES: For this building it’s 37
studi os of supportive housing, and then 15 one-
bedr oons, 21 two-bedroons and three three-bedroom
apart nments.

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: So which one w |
t he speci al needs be in?

RAY HODGES: The studi o apartnents.

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: (kay, | wanted to
clarify that.

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Ckay thank you
Are there any other questions? Alright, seeing none
are there any nenbers of the public here that wish to
testify? Seeing none, |I'mgoing to close the public
hearing on this itemand | want to note that Counci
Menbers Arroyo and Torres are in support of Land Use
Item 83 and Council Menber Mealy is in support of
Land Use Itenms 93 and 94 and all the rest that we’ ve
heard today, | do strongly support. | will now call
on ny council to call the roll on a coupled vote to
approve. Land Use Item 71 — Maple Court, Land Use

ltens Nunber 75 and 76 — 492 St. N chol as Avenue,
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PLANNI NG DI SPOSTI ONS AND CONCESSI ONS 22

Land Use Item 80 — the 127'" Street O uster, Land Use
Nunmber 83 — 2015 Monterrey Avenue, Land Use Itens
Nunmbers 90, 91, 92 - The MsS Houses, Land Use Itens
Nurmbered 93 and 94 — The Henry Apartnents and | am
voting “1” and | ask ny colleagues to vote “I” to
approve a notion. Also, to file Land Use Item 72 and
Counci | Menmber Treyger’s district, pursuant to HPD s
wi t hdrawal of application. Council please call the
roll.

COUNCI L: Chair Di ckens?

COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: | vote “I” on
all.

COUNCI L:  Council Menber Mealy?

COUNCI L MEMBER MEALY: | vote “I” on all

COUNCI L:  Counci| Menber Rodriguez?

COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ: | .

COUNCI L:  Council Menber Cohen?

COUNCI L MEMBER COHEN: 1.

COUNCI L:  Council Menber Treyger?

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: |.

COUNCIL: By a vote of the five in the
affirmative, zero abstentions and no negatives, al
items have been adopted. | refer to the Full Land

Use Conmittee.
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COUNCI L MEMBER DI CKENS: Thank you
menbers of the public and thank you to ny coll eagues
and nmy Land Use staff and ny council. And I close
and this hearing is hereby adjourned.

[ GAVEL]




CERTI FI CATE

World Wde Dictation certifies that the
foregoing transcript is a true and accurate
record of the proceedings. | further certify that
| am not related to any of the parties to this
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way interested in the outcone of this matter.
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